
Page 1 of 2 

 Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, June 14, 2021, 7:00pm 

Township Park Bandshell 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

Meeting called to order 

 Invocation given by Ken Murillo
 Pledge of Allegiance
 Approve Agenda
 Consent Agenda

o Approval of the May 24, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
o Bills
o Interim Bills
o Vendor License Waiver for Ice Box Brand Ice Cream Bars and Mike’s Concessions
o Fireworks Permit (Application)

 For information
o Financial Report
o Minutes of the May 17, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting
o Construction Update Public Utilities- Wastewater Treatment Plant
o May Fire Department Report
o Zoning Text Amendments (bring to June 28 for action)

 Public Hearings
 Public Comments (90 seconds)
 Guest Speakers
 Action Items

o Statue Committee Recommendation
 Discussion Items
 Public Comments (60 seconds)
 Board Comments
 Future Agenda Items
 Adjournment 



Page 2 of 2 

Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

• Account: ACT_Guest
• Password: ACTguest
• File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 5 
 

PROPOSED 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MAY SESSION-2nd DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met virtually, to comply with Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services directives due to COVID-19, on 
Monday, May 24, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. and was called to order at 7:05 by Mr. 
Elenbaas. 
 
Present: Ms. Vander Veen; Mr. Murillo; Ms. Hansen; Mr. Vander Wall; Ms. 
Kraker; Mr. Zeinstra and Mr. Elenbaas. (7) 
 
Absent: None (0) 
 
Staff and Guest Present: Bob Sullivan, Legal Counsel; Elizabeth Szymanski, 
Deputy Clerk/Community Coordinator; Colton Hyble, Allendale Township 
Intern; Chad Doornbos, Public Utilities Supervisor; Lydale Weaver, Human 
Resources Specialist; Shelly Kowalczyk, Rental & Safety Administrative 
Assistant;  Jon Donald, Garden of Honor Committee Member; Susan 
Jackson, Garden of Honor Committee Member; Tumaini Sango, Garden of 
Honor Committee Member; Carina Freeman, Garden of Honor Committee 
Member; Terry VanDyken, Garden of Honor Committee Member; Lisa 
Feurzeig, Garden of Honor Committee Member; and Dave Vermilye, Garden 
of Honor Committee Facilitator; Bill Amstutz; Greg Yaklin; Carissa Foura; 
Holland Sentinel; Jason Heeres; Jessica VanBlaricum-Miller; Karen Amisi; 
Kellen Voss; Mark Green; Michael Kransz; Sarah Shepp; Wood TV8; Fox 17; 
Josh Dean; Mitch Kahle; Marshall Battani; Holly Huber; Peter Walsh; Aaron 
Haight; Debbie Culbertson and Michelle Lentz.  
 
Mr. Zeinstra pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

 
BOT 21-084 Mr. Zeinstra moved to approve the agenda of today as presented. The 

motion passed. 
 

BOT 21-085 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve the following Consent Resolutions: 
 



Page 2 of 5 
 

1. To approve the Minutes of the May 10, 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 

2. To approve the general claims in the amount of $357,673.16 and the 
interim payments of $492.29 as presented by the summary report for May 
12, 2021 – May 25, 2021. The motion passed. 

 
Items Received for Information 

 
1. Financial Report 

 
2. Minutes of the May 3, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting 

 
3. Sheriff’s Department April Monthly Report 
 
Public Hearings- None 
 
Garden of Honor Memorial Committee 
 
The Garden of Honor Committee: Jon Donald, Member; Susan Jackson, Member; 
Tumaini Sango, Member; Carina Freeman, Member; Terry VanDyken, Member; 
Lisa Feurzeig, Member; and Dave Vermilye, Committee Facilitator collectively 
presented their recommendations pertaining to the Garden of Honor Memorial. 
The committee has narrowed their recommendations to three potential 
suggestions for the board to consider. They include: 
 

1. Adding additional statues to represent the wars that are currently 
missing from the Garden of Honor. The three wars the committee 
highlighted were: The War of 1812, The Mexican-American War and the 
Global War on Terror. They suggest when adding additional statues that 
they are created with four (4) different guidelines, which include 
people-based statues, anonymous and not specific to any one person, 
be diverse and sensitive in terms of ethnicity and gender, and to consult 
with those that have a vested interest in how the statue is depicted.  
 

2. Adopting signage for the Garden. Specifically, the committee suggested 
having a sign at the entrance encouraging visitors to look for QR Codes 
within the Garden. Using a smartphone or tablet, these QR Codes would 
bring visitors to a webpage which could contain historical information 
specific to the war each statue represents, interesting stories and 
anecdotes, connections to Allendale, artists thoughts and 
interpretations when creating each statue. The committee feels this 
idea is a good teaching opportunity.  

 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
3. Replacing the existing Civil War statue with a revised version of 

representation of the Civil War. The committee provided a vision of 
what the new statue could look like. They recommend creating a statue 
of three (3) soldiers standing side by side. The soldiers would be 
inspired by Hiram Knowlton; Benjamin Jones; and Louis “Little Feather” 
Miskoguon. The committee feels the inspiration of the three (3) 
different soldiers provide an opportunity to represent diverse 
backgrounds while portraying unity.  

 
The committee clarified they do not have a specific recommendation on what to 
do with the existing statue if the board chooses to remove it. However, they 
touched on possibly donating it to a historical society or museum. They also 
indicated they unanimously agreed they do not recommend the board destroy 
the current statue, nor do they recommend donating it to a private citizen.  
 
Several board members had questions and thanked the committee for their time, 
dedication and hard work on these well thought out recommendations.  
 
Public Comments and Communications 
 
Comments were received from: 
1. Josh Dean, Allendale 
2. Mitch Kahle, Muskegon 
3. Holly Huber, Muskegon 
4. Aaron Haight, Allendale 
5. Jessica VanBlaricum-Miller, Allendale 
6. Michelle Lentz, Grand Haven 

 
BOT 21-086 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 
 Mr. Murillo exited the meeting at 8:19 p.m.  

 
Guest Speakers 
 
Lydale Weaver, Human Resource Specialist, provide an update to the HR 
Department. Mr. Weaver indicated there have been ten (10) employee 
transitions/hires since January. He has been very busy with interviews and 
orientations. He provided a status update on the Novatime project as well as 
BS&A.  
 
Shelly Kowalczyk, gave an overview of both the Rental and Safety Departments. 
Ms. Kowalczyk indicated of the 200 rental properties, 199 have already submitted 
their registrations. The Rental Department has 716 inspections to accomplish and 



Page 4 of 5 
 

anticipates completing these by early to mid-fall. Some highlights pertaining to 
the Safety Department included: the initiation of the respirator program, AED in 
the maintenance building, and a blood-born spill kit. Ms. Kowalczyk indicated the 
new laptop has provided a wealth of flexibility. It allows her to work directly with 
more employees as she can now travel to various locations when needed. 
Specifically, she has held safety briefings during tail-gate team meetings. The 
employees appreciate this as well. In addition, she has continued with the 
monthly safety trainings during Covid-19, but has transitioned them to online to 
comply with MDHHS directives. In-person trainings are scheduled to resume in 
June.  
 

 Action Items 
 
BOT 21-087 Mr. Zeinstra moved to and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to sign 

Ordinance 2021-01; a zoning map amendment to accommodate the 
Allendale Baptist Church development project. The motion passed as shown 
by the following votes: 

 YEAS: Ms. Vander Veen, Ms. Hansen, Ms. Kraker, Mr. Vander Wall, Mr. 
Zeinstra and Mr. Elenbaas. (6) 

 NAYS: None (0) 
 ABSENT: Mr. Murillo (1) 
 
BOT 21-088 Ms. Hansen moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to sign 

Resolution 2021-10; outlining the development approval conditions for 
Allendale Baptist Church. The motion passed as shown by the following 
votes: 

 YEAS: Ms. Vander Veen, Ms. Hansen, Ms. Kraker, Mr. Vander Wall, Mr. 
Zeinstra and Mr. Elenbaas. (6) 

 NAYS: None (0) 
 ABSENT: Mr. Murillo (1) 
 
BOT 21-089 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve the hiring of Betsy Ludema to fill the 

Substitute Library Page and Circulation Assistant position at a wage of $12.06 
per hour. The motion passed.  

 
BOT 21-090 Ms. Hansen moved to approve the hiring of Natasha Shepard to fill the 

Administrative Assistant position at a wage of $14.82 per hour. The motion 
passed.  

  
BOT 21-091 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve the hiring of Charles Thompson to fill the 



Page 5 of 5 
 

Public Utilities Assistant Operator Seasonal position at a wage of $15.49 per 
hour. The motion passed.  

 
BOT 21-092 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve the dates and accept the list of bands for 

the 2021 Summer Concerts in the Park and to authorize the Clerk to execute 
appropriate contracts for each band. The motion passed. 

 
Discussion Items 
 
Mr. Elenbaas introduced draft language of Fire Cost Recovery Ordinance and 
Resolution updates. He indicated these policies will be brought to a future board 
meeting for approval.   
 
Public Comments and Communications 

 
Comments were received from: 
1. Josh Dean, Allendale 
 

BOT 21-093 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 
 Board Comments: 

 
1. Mr. Elenbaas clarified the intent of the June 14, 2021 meeting was to 

bring the Garden of Honor Committee recommendations back to the 
board for further discussion and potential action. In addition, he 
indicated the hope was to be back to in-person meetings starting with 
the June 14, 2021 meeting.  

2. Mr. Zeinstra thanked the Garden of Honor Committee and requested for 
Mr. Elenbaas to extend an invitation for the committee to attend the 
meeting on June 14, 2021. 

 
BOT 21-094 Mr. Vander Wall moved to adjourn at 9:12 p.m. The motion passed. 
 
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 

 
 

















 
 

 

June 9, 2021 
 
 
Township Board of Trustees: 
 
We have secured the services of two vendors for the 4th of July Activities in the Park: Mike’s 
Kettlecorn and Ice Box Brand Ice Cream. In the past the Township Board has waived vendor fees 
for events hosted by the township.  The vendor licenses that will be issued will be a special one-
day permit which will be valid only for July 3, 2021. 
 
As you are aware, the Board of Trustees needs to approve the waiver of these fees.  I am 
requesting that the Board of Trustees waive any vendor fees for vendors contracted for July 3, 
2021; 4th of July Activities in the Park. 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Jody Hansen 
Allendale Township Clerk 
  
 







APPLICATION FOR FIREWORKS DISPLAY PERMIT             
Michigan Department of Energy, Labor, & Economic Growth 

Bureau of Fire Services 
P.O. Box 30700 

Lansing, MI 48909 
(517) 241-8847 

 
Authority:      1988 PA 358 
Compliance:  Voluntary 
Penalty:         Permit will not be issued 

The Department of Energy, Labor & Economic Growth will not discriminate against any individual or group because or 
race, sex, religion, age, national origin, color, material status, disability, or political beliefs.  If you need assistance with 
reading, writing, hearing, etc., under the American with Disabilities Ace, you may make your needs known to this agency. 

 
                  PUBLIC DISPLAY                                          AGRICULTURAL PEST CONTROL                                             Date of Application  3/18/2021 

                                                                                                                                                
Name of Applicant                                                       Address                                                                                             Age (18 or over) 
Melrose Pyrotechnics, Inc.                                                 PO Box 302, Kingsbury, IN  46345 

 
If a Corporation, Name of President                           Address 
Michael Cartolano                                                             PO Box 302, Kingsbury, IN  46345 

 
If a Non-resident Applicant: Name of MI                    Address                                                                                             Phone No. 
Attorney or Resident Agent                                        4369 E Summit Woods Dr NE, Rockford MI  49341                               (616) 427-0377 

Michael Falk                                                               

 
Name of Pyrotechnic Operator                                  Address                                                                                             Age (18 or over) 
Mike VanLoo                                                                     4369 E Summit Woods Dr NE, Rockford MI  49341                                 52 

 
No. Years Experience / No. Displays                         Where 
32 years / 500+                                                                   Michigan 

 
Name of Assistant:                                                    Address                                                                                             Age 
Jonathan Schnicke                                                           4369 E Summit Woods Dr NE, Rockford MI  49341                                 46 

 
Name of Other Assistant:                                          Address                                                                                             Age 
Trevor VanLoo                                                                 4369 E Summit Woods Dr NE, Rockford MI  49341                                 21 

 

Exact Location of Proposed Display 
Allendale Public School Property, 10455 Timberline Dr., Allendale MI  49401 

 
Date of Proposed Display  July 4, 2021                        Time of Proposed Display  Approx 10:15 PM 

 
No. Of Fireworks Kind of Fireworks to be Displayed 

 

Approximately 2000 

 

Aerial display shells ranging in size from 1 ¼ inches to 6 inches in diameter. 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Manner & Place of Storage Prior to Display (Subject to Approval of Local Fire Authorities) 
 

No storage necessary, delivered on date of display 

 
 
 

Amount of Bond of Insurance (to be set by local gov’t) 
$5,000,000.00 

Name of Bonding Corporation or Insurance Company 
Britton-Gallagher & Associates 

Address of Bonding Corporation or Insurance Company 

One Cleveland Center, Floor 30; 1375 East 9th Street, Cleveland, Ohio   44114 

Signature of Applicant 

                                                                                                                             For Melrose Pyrotechnics, Inc. 

2021 



 
 
 

FIREWORKS DISPLAY PERMIT             
Michigan Department of Energy, Labor, & Economic Growth 

Bureau of Fire Services 
P.O. Box 30700 

Lansing, MI 48909 
(517) 241-8847 

 
Authority:      1988 PA 358 
Compliance:  Voluntary 
Penalty:         Permit will not be issued 

The Department of Energy, Labor & Economic Growth will not discriminate against any individual or group because or 
race, sex, religion, age, national origin, color, material status, disability, or political beliefs.  If you need assistance with 
reading, writing, hearing, etc., under the American with Disabilities Ace, you may make your needs known to this agency. 

 

 
This permit is not transferable. It authorizes the resident wholesale dealer or jobber named below to have in his or her 
possession fireworks of any type, for sale only to holders of permits for public display or agriculture control. 

 
         PUBLIC DISPLAY   AGRICULTURAL PEST CONTROL 
 
Issued To 
Melrose Pyrotechnics, Inc. 

Age (18 or over) 

Address 
4369 E Summit Woods Dr NE, Rockford, MI  49341 

Name of Organization, Group, Firm, or Corporation 
Allendale Charter Township 

Address 
PO Box 539, Allendale MI  49401 

Number and Types of Fireworks 
Approximately 2000 aerial display shells ranging in size from 1 ¼ inches to 6 inches in diameter. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exact Location of Display 
Allendale Public School Property, 10455 Timberline Dr., Allendale MI  49401 

City, Village, Township 
Allendale Charter Township 

Date 
7/4/2021 

Time 
Approx. 10:15 PM 

Bond or Insurance Filed? 
                                                             Yes                                         No 

Amount 
$5,000,000.00 

 
 
Issued by action of :                council            commission            board of the 
 
     city              village              township of ____________________________________________ 
         (Name of City, Village, Township) 

 

on the __________________  day of ________________________________, _______________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                             (Signature and Title of Council/Commission/Board Representative) 

2021 



ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

May 17, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

Via Zoom Software 

 
1) Meeting called to order 

2) Roll Call 
Present: Adams, Zuniga, Schut, Kelley, Westerling, Longcore 
Absent: Zeinstra 
Staff Present: Greg Ransford 
Other Guests Present: Lynelle Berkenpas, Marcel VanderLaan, Lora Richmond, Kevin 
Yeomans 

3) Received for information  

4) Motion by Schut to approve the May 3, 2021 meeting minutes. Seconded by Kelley. 
Approved: 6-0 

5) Motion by Longcore to approve the May 17, 2021 Planning Commission Agenda. Seconded by 
Adams. 
Approved: 6-0 

6) Public Comments for non-public hearing items: 
Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for non-public hearing items. Kevin 
Yeomans facilitated the public comments beginning with callers, proceeding to participants 
using the web or app. No comments were made. Chairperson Longcore closed the public 
comment section.  

7) Public Hearings 

8) Site Plan Review: 
A. Allendale Christian School – Building Addition 

Planner Ransford summarized the request for minor versus major amendment for special 
use. The Commission had determined there was a major change. Since that time, the 
applicant has revised the plans for improvement for the dumpster, a buffer along the 
south and southeast property lines, and rooftop equipment on the gym. Upon Planning 
Commission approval, it would be scheduled for public hearing. 

Lynelle Berkenpas, with Holland Engineering provided an overview of the expansion plan 
and the impacts expected, including several existing conditions. She explained the school 
was originally constructed in 2007, with an addition in 2017. Both site plans were 
reviewed by the state at the township’s direction and approved at that time—so some of 
what was seen on the site currently, may not have met the zoning ordinances at the time. 
The initial construction at 64th and Henry Street involved about 37,000 square feet, with a 
2017 addition of 5,700 square feet. The current proposal was for an additional 12,000 to 
13,000 square feet with four to five more classrooms. The current student body count 
was less than 400 students, and the plan would provide capacity for 500 students. No 
additional parking had been included, and there were no planned changes outside of the 
site itself. In addition, there had been moderate storm water improvements and 
preliminary feedback from the Water Resources Commission indicated that they would 
likely be approved. 



Chairperson Longcore opened the session for Commissioners questions or comments.  

Mr. Adams asked Planner Ransford for clarification about parking during athletic events 
and whether they occur during regular school operations. Marcel VanderLaan, with 
Lakewood Construction, explained athletic events historically occurred after school 
operations. Additional conversation led Mr. Longcore to ask a future project to be 
removed from the drawings, as it was not intended to be submitted by the applicant at 
this time. 

The Commissioners agreed that they did not have any concerns with the proposed 
lighting plan, pending any concerns that may be raised by the public. They asked several 
clarifying questions about the storm water improvements. Ms. Berkenpas explained the 
plan further regarding the shallow depth of the retention areas and described the existing 
storm water ponds throughout the site. 

Mr. Schut expressed that he was okay with the ground equipment as long as it was 
screened per the Ordinance. Commissioners found the dumpster enclosure as acceptable 
to remain, pending comments at the public hearing.  

Mr. Longcore raised concerns about the current traffic issues and any applicable traffic 
studies. Ms. Berkenpas said that the school was considering a couple of things to reduce 
traffic at the site and has taken some steps to improve the amount of queuing. 

It was suggested by Mr. Adams to consider an “incoming” direction from 64th Avenue and 
exiting onto Henry Street, allowing a more controllable circulation flow. Ms. Berkenpas 
somewhat disagreed due to the proximity to the intersection at Henry Street, across from 
the Family Fare exit, and crossing a left turn lane. She did however, state she was willing 
to investigate it further. Mr. Kelley also agreed with Ms. Berkenpas, that it was not a 
satisfactory solution. 

Mr. Schut voiced concern about the growth of the school without additional parking. Ms. 
Berkenpas reiterated the school was aware that the issue would need to be addressed, 
and there were discussions about the potential options however, until the gymnasium 
expansion moved forward, those plans were in a holding phase, unless the ordinance 
required them. Mr. Schut responded that it would be helpful for the Commission to see 
those plans as it related to the current project and future expansion. 

Regarding the traffic concerns, Mr. VanderLaan noted the potential for cars to turn into 
Henry Street, proceeding to the east lot to reverse the traffic flow there, allowing them to 
stack more cars for the carpool process. Because of the good relationship with Allendale 
Baptist Church, there had also been conversation for the potential of shared parking for 
special events.  

Mr. Adams asked if there had been any conversations about relocating the existing 
driveway on 64th Avenue to make it a one-way street and make circulation clearer. Mr. 
VanderLaan responded there had not, and relocation would displace athletic fields, which 
were somewhat landlocked, unless there were a future land acquisition. 

Mr. Schut and Mr. Longcore remarked about the parent drop-off and bus areas being 
swapped. Mr. VanderLaan expressed being open to suggestions.  

The Commission agreed unanimously to allow Planner Ransford to schedule a public 
hearing for June 7, 2021. 

9) Old Business 

10) New Business 



A. Work Program 

Planner Ransford brought before the Commission the 2021 list of completed business, as 
well as upcoming business and requested the Commissioners to provide input for priority 
of future planning items. 

The Commission reviewed the list, with comments regarding ground water quality and 
major developments connecting to sewer. Mr. Longcore also mentioned the non-
motorized path. Kevin Yeomans, Project Coordinator for Allendale Township, spoke to 
the Commission regarding the non-motorized path. He mentioned that the project had 
been detained for another year, but he would work on gathering information to bring 
before the Commission.  

The Commission agreed on three items for Planner Ransford to prepare for future 
business. 

11) Public Comments 
Chairperson Longcore opened the second public comment section for non-public hearing items. 
Kevin Yeomans facilitated the public comments beginning with callers, proceeding to 
participants using the web or app. No comments were made. Chairperson Longcore closed the 
public comment section.  

12) Township Board Reports 

13) Commissioner and Staff Comments 

Mr. Longcore discussed the BP Station fencing. The requirement was to be a retaining wall 
and then additional fencing turning north to 48th Avenue. They had requested to use either 
chain link fence or ornamental fencing. The Commissioners discussed options as Planner 
Ransford shared the site plans. The consensus was a wood fencing option, with Planner 
Ransford agreeing to relay the decision. 

Planner Ransford noted that the applicant for 5015 Warner Street Mining Site desired to 
screen the topsoil separating the stone from the sand. Planner Ransford had advised the 
applicant this request would possibly require re-application or an amendment to the recently 
issued special use permit. He asked the Commission whether they preferred to speak with the 
applicant first, or if it could be scheduled for public hearing as a major change. The 
Commissioners agreed, given the neighborhood concern and the change of special use, it 
would be best to speak with the applicant first before deciding whether re-application would 
be required, or a public hearing could be scheduled. Planner Ransford agreed to follow-up 
with the applicant. 

Mr. Westerling asked the Commission regarding a question he had been asked about dividing 
a parcel of land. Kevin Yeomans stated he would follow-up to provide a definitive answer. 

14) Adjourn – Chairperson Longcore adjourned the meeting at 8:26 p.m.  

Next meeting Monday, June 7, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

Planning Commission Minutes respectfully submitted by Lora Richmond 



 
 

 

MEMO 
 

2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

 

To: Chad Doornbos, Superintendent of Public Utilities, Allendale Charter Township 

From: Mark A. Bratschi, PE 

CC: 
Allendale Charter Township: Adam Elenbaas, Gary Nestle 
OCRC: Pat Staskiewicz, PE 
F&V: Bob Wilcox PE, Mike Vander Ploeg PE, Corey Turner PE 

Date: June 2, 2021 

Re: 
Project Update through May 2021 
Allendale Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Project #1209 

 
The purpose of this memo is to provide an update on the construction progress and project costs. 
 
Construction Progress Update: 
 

General Comments:  
 
➢ The Administration and Lab Building is complete, and the interior furnishings are complete. The final 

clean is complete and we are waiting on Certificate of Occupancy. The exterior site work is progressing 
and the restoration work is ongoing. 

➢ Equipment Storage Building is complete and the final clean is complete. 
 

Work Completed this Period: 
 
➢ Administration and Lab Building: 

o Interior furnishings. 
o Final clean. 

➢ Equipment Storage Building: 
o Final clean. 

➢ Maintenance Building: 
o Complete. 

➢ Site: 
o Irrigation, restoration and landscaping is ongoing.  

 
  

mailto:pstaskiewicz@ottawacorc.com


Allendale Charter Township | Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Page 2 of 9 

 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

Work Scheduled for next Month: 
 
➢ Administration and Lab Building: 

o Final inspections and punch list. 
➢ Equipment Storage Building: 

o Punch list. 
➢ Maintenance Building: 

o Punch list. 
➢ Site: 

o Complete asphalt. 
o Irrigation, restoration and landscaping installation. 
o Clean up. 
o Automatic gate installation.  

 
Change Orders: 
 

Contract modifications in Change Order No. 5 include the following: 
 

▪ Irrigation and landscaping improvements. 
▪ Additional pavement striping. 
▪ Steel building paint touch up. 
▪ Add gas valve chase in laboratory. 
▪ Add 18” peg board in laboratory.  
▪ Additional plumbing in Administration Building and Equipment Storage Building. 
▪ Connection power to cubicles.  
▪ IT equipment deduction.  
▪ Additional outlets and switch. 
▪ Dedicated power supply to the SCADA panel. 
▪ Two additional TVs for Conference Room and Open Office. 

 
Modifications under consideration for June include the following: 

 
▪ Add curtains and exhaust fan in the Maintenance Building. 
▪ Weather stripping around existing overhead doors.  

 
Project Budget Update: 
 

See attached Project Budget Tracking Summary Through May 2021 
 
Attachments: 

➢ Construction Photos 
➢ Summary of Change Order No. 5 – May 2021 
➢ Project Budget Tracking Summary Through May 2021 

  



Allendale Charter Township | Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Page 3 of 9 

 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

 
Administration Building air conditioner   
 



Allendale Charter Township | Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Page 4 of 9 

 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

 
Administration Building conference room 



Allendale Charter Township | Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

 
Administration Building laboratory   



Allendale Charter Township | Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

 
Administration Building break room   
 



Allendale Charter Township | Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

 
Administration Building training room  



Allendale Charter Township | Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Page 8 of 9 

 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

 
Equipment Storage Building exterior  
 



Allendale Charter Township | Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 
Page 9 of 9 

 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.4400 
F: 616.977.4800 

09_FVC_Memo_May - 2021 www.fvcm.com 
 

 
Equipment Storage Building interior  
 



Job Name: Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 

Location: Allendale Charter Township

Job Number: 1209

Description:

Contract

Change

Order Item Source Sub Price Description

CM Contingency

Allowance

Owner Change 

Order No. 5

Cost 

Savings Item

1 - Site Work & Exc 1 Bulletin No. 10, Item 1 6,930.00$    Irrigation system improvements 6,930.00$                  

(Cutting Edge) 2 Bulletin No. 10, Item 2 3,350.00$    Landscaping modifications 3,350.00$                  

3 250.00$       Additional Striping 250.00$                     

2 - Concrete -$             

(Jelsema) -$             

3 - Masonry -$             

(Masonry Arts) -$             

4 - General Trades -$             

(Vander Kodde) -$             

4a - PEMB -$             

(BCI) -$             

5 - Painting 1,715.00$    Touch up steel building paint. 1,715.00$                  

(Dave Cole) -$             

6 - Flooring -$             

(Phoenix Interiors) -$             

7 - Cabinetry 4 1,703.35$    Gas valve chase in lab. 1,703.35$                  

(Duke) 5 687.50$       18" peg board. 687.50$                     

8 - Plumbing & Mechanical 6 6,091.56$    Additional plumbing in Admin and Equipment Storage Bldg. 6,091.56$                  

(DHE) -$             

9 - Fire Protection -$             

(Total Fire Protection) -$             

10 & 11 - Electrical 7 608.00$       Connection power to cubicles. 608.00$                     

(Town & Country) (4,327.56)$   IT equipment deduction. (4,327.56)$                 Yes

597.00$       Additional outlets and switch. 597.00$                     

909.00$       Install dedicated power to the SCADA panel 909.00$                     

12 - Integrator 8 3,897.28$    Provide two large TVs in Conference Room and Open Office 3,897.28$                  

(Windemuller)

SubTotals = (1,106.56)$                 23,517.69$                

CM Fee = -$                           -$                           

Total = (1,106.56)$                 23,517.69$                

Original Contingency Allowance Amount = 191,200.00$              260,473.41$              

Changes from Previous Change Orders = (66,080.88)$               (59,114.59)$               

Current Contingency Allowance Amount = 125,119.12$              201,358.82$              

Contingency Adjustment this Change Order = 1,106.56$                  (23,517.69)$               

Updated Contingency Allowance Amount = 126,225.68$              177,841.13$              

Summary of Owner Change Order No. 5 - May 2021

Administration Building and Equipment Storage 

Building, Phase I

K:\Projects\1209 840682 ACT Allendale Wastewater Treatment System Improvements 2020\Contract Changes\Change Orders\Owner\1209_ChangeOrder_Summary_Ver-06CO No. 5 - May 21



Job Name: Wastewater Treatment System 2020 Improvements 

Location: Allendale Charter Township

Job Number: 1209

Description:

Trade Category Subcontractor Exhibit A Value

Contract Changes 

to Date

Adj. Contract 

Amount

Contract 1 Site Work & Excavation Cutting Edge Excavating | Hudsonville, MI 529,703.00$       72,605.00$         602,308.00$     

Contract 2 Concrete Jelsema Concrete Construction | Kentwood, MI 215,000.00$       383.00$              215,383.00$     

Contract 3 Masonry Masonry Arts Company | Holland, MI 172,000.00$       1,900.00$           173,900.00$     

Contract 4 General Trades VanderKodde Construction Co. | Grand Rapids, MI 452,490.00$       33,084.00$         485,574.00$     

Contract 4a PEMB BCI Construction LLC | Grand Rapids, MI 356,582.00$       -$                    356,582.00$     

Contract 5 Painting Dave Cole Decorators, Inc. | Sparta, MI 44,600.00$         (1,985.00)$          42,615.00$       

Contract 6 Flooring Phoenix Interiors | Walker, MI 18,490.00$         4,515.00$           23,005.00$       

Contract 7 Cabinetry Duke Construction Corp. | Allendale, MI 98,400.00$         5,346.48$           103,746.48$     

Contract 8 Plumbing & Mechanical DHE Plumbing & Mechanical | Grandville, MI 479,100.00$       9,603.40$           488,703.40$     

Contract 9 Fire Protection Total Fire Protection | Grand Rapids, MI 77,120.00$         -$                    77,120.00$       

Contract 10&11 Electrical, Controls/ Comm, Data Town & Country Group | Zeeland, MI 561,700.00$       13,857.44$         575,557.44$     

Contract 12 Owner's System Integrator Windemuller | Wayland, MI 99,900.00$         3,897.28$           103,797.28$     

Ottawa County Network Allowance 7,500.00$           -$                    7,500.00$         

Acentek Internet Service Allowance 3,500.00$           -$                    3,500.00$         

Gas Utility Allowance 6,000.00$           -$                    6,000.00$         

Total of Trades 3,122,085.00$    143,206.60$       3,265,291.60$  

General Conditions 149,400.00$       -$                    149,400.00$     

Sub Total 3,271,485.00$    143,206.60$       3,414,691.60$  

CM Overhead & Construction Management Fee (8.5%) 278,100.00$       -$                    278,100.00$     

Sub Total 3,549,585.00$    143,206.60$       3,692,791.60$  

FVC Basic Services 274,600.00$       -$                    274,600.00$     

Sub Total of Construction Cost 3,824,185.00$    143,206.60$       3,967,391.60$  

CM Contingency Allowance 191,200.00$       (64,974.32)$        126,225.68$     

Total FVC Budget Authorization 4,015,385.00$    78,232.28$         4,093,617.28$  

Design Phase Engineering 313,800.00$       -$                    313,800.00$     

Bid Phase Engineering 30,300.00$         -$                    30,300.00$       

Construction Phase Engineering 121,200.00$       4,400.00$           125,600.00$     

Owner's Furnishings Allowance 90,000.00$         -$                    90,000.00$       

Owner's Contingency 260,315.00$       (82,632.28)$        177,682.72$     

Bond Issuance Cost 82,770.91$         -$                    82,770.91$       

Total Project 4,913,770.91$    -$                    4,913,770.91$  

Project Budget Tracking Summary Through May 2021

Administration Building and Equipment Storage 

Building, Phase I

1209_ChangeOrder_Summary_Ver-06/Project Detail-Jun 21 Page 1 of 1



































MEMORANDUM 

 
To:  Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission  
From:  Gregory L. Ransford, MPA 

Date:  May 3, 2021 
Re:  Proposed Text Amendments to the Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance to 
(add) Section 3.19, Section 24.06H, and Section 24.04J 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
In accordance with Article 29 – Amendments and District Changes; Procedures of the 
Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance (ACTZO), below we provide our synopsis 
regarding proposed text amendments to the ACTZO that were recommended for adoption by 
the Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission (ACTPC) at their April 19, 2021 meeting. 
The proposed amendments include the addition of Section 3.19 – Tree Preservation, and 
revisions to Section 24.06H – Waste Disposal Facilities, and Section 24.06J – Building 
Appearance.  
 
As you are aware, the Board of Trustees is the approving authority of proposed text 
amendments.  
 
Proposed Text Amendments 
 
Section 3.19 – Tree Preservation 
 
As you may know he ACTPC has recently expressed interest in tree preservation within 
development sites, such as residential neighborhoods, and within commercial and industrial 
properties. Following an adoption process of the same at Park Township, the ACTPC modeled 
Section 3.19, in part, on the efforts of Park Township. The ACTPC seeks to preserve trees for 
their aesthetic (rural character), biological, and environmental benefits by requiring buffer 
areas in development, preventing the clear cutting of a property, and requiring a minimum 
tree canopy, among other related provisions. 
 
Through a vote of 7-0, Section 3.19 – Tree Preservation was recommended for adoption. 
While we would ordinarily provide a document identifying the changes from the current 
language, since Section 3.19 is entirely new, the Section is presented only as recommended.  
 
Section 24.06H – Waste Disposal Facilities 
 
As you are aware, Allendale Charter Township currently requires certain enclosure, location, 
and dimensional specifications for dumpsters within residential, commercial, and industrial 
development. The amendment to Section 26.06H – Waste Disposal Facilities proposed by the 
ACTPC will establish more detail regarding enclosures, with particular regard to bollard and 
gate placement and spacing within the enclosure, as well as to reduce the need for an 
enclosure under certain circumstances. Further, the ACTPC sought to require non-conforming 
dumpster enclosures to comply with the language of Section 24.06H, when appropriate.  
 
Through a vote of 7-0, the revisions to Section 24.06H – Waste Disposal Facilities were 
recommended for adoption. For your convenience, attached is a document showing the 
proposed changes from the current ACTZO language. 

 
 
 
 



Section 24.06J – Building Appearance 
 
Simply, the ACTPC sought to create a minimum glass requirement of ten percent (10%) rather than a maximum 
requirement of forty percent (40%) for commercial building facades. In addition, the ACTPC sought to allow 
various types of glass so not to limit the requirement to a typical window. 
 
Through a vote of 7-0, the revisions to Section 24.06J – Building Appearance were recommended for adoption. 
For your convenience, attached is a document showing the proposed changes from the current ACTZO language. 
 
Public Hearing 

 
No comments were received during the public hearing. 

 
Recommendation 

 
As aforementioned, the Planning Commission unanimously recommended adoption of the proposed text 
amendments by a vote of 7-0. Attached are the proposed amendments in the form of the necessary Zoning Text 
Amendment Ordinance. 

 
If you have any questions, please let us know. 

 
GLR 
Planner 
 
Attachments 

 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
  
 ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF 
ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP, OTTAWA COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
BY ADDING SECTION 3.19 – TREE PRESERVATION, BY AMENDING 
SECTION 24.06H – WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES AND; BY 
AMENDING SECTION 24.06J – BUILDING APPEARANCE, AND 
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL AND SEVERABILITY PROVISIONS AND THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE. 

 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, AND STATE OF 

MICHIGAN ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1.  Tree Preservation. Section 3.19 of the Allendale Charter Township Zoning 
Ordinance shall be added to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

A. Purpose and Intent. Tree preservation is recognized as essential throughout 
the township to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the natural 
environment, and the residents. The intent of this Section is to promote the 
aesthetic, biological, and environmental benefits of trees.  

 
Further, the township seeks to implement the goals of preserving rural 
character, preserving the natural resources and water quality, and preserving 
open spaces and wooded lands within the Township, as encouraged by the 
Allendale Charter Township Master Plan, recognizing: 

 
1. The natural beauty and rural character of the township are increased. 
2. Tree-lined Streets are an asset to the character of the community, 

particularly along, but not necessarily limited to, residential areas. 
3. Mature Trees create a spectacular Canopy along roadways and create 

shade. 
4. New development should preserve Tree Stands. 
5. Avoiding the loss of significant woodlots to disease and infestation is 

important.  
6. Tree Canopy and health analysis, maintenance, and reforestation should 

regularly occur. 
 

B. Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this 
Section, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except 
where the content clearly indicates a different meaning: 

 



ARBORIST: A professional, who is both certified by the International Society of 
Arboriculture and is a registered member of the Arboriculture Society of 
Michigan, and who cultivates, manages, and studies trees, shrubs, vines, and 
other perennial woody plants in dendrology and horticulture.  
 
BUFFER: A vegetative screening of mature trees, or planted trees, or a 
combination of both, that protects and enhances the existing natural beauty 
and is sufficient to reduce noise and visually screen abutting property from 
the impacts of the Project property. 
 
CANOPY: The layer of tree leaves, branches, and stems that provide coverage 
of the ground when viewed from above.  
 
CLEAR CUT or CLEAR CUTTING: The removal of any tree beyond that 
reasonably required to construct Project infrastructure and buildings. 
 
DIAMETER BREAST HEIGHT: The measurement of a tree diameter at four and 
one half (4.5) feet above the ground. 
 
FORESTER: A professional, who is registered with the State of Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources Registered Forester program, and who 
practices the science of ecological restoration and management of forests.  
 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT: A professional, who is licensed with the State of 
Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs, or successor 
Department, and who practices the performance of design, preservation, or 
enhancement of natural land resources, ground cover and planting, and 
naturalistic and aesthetic values related to landscaping and trees. 
 
MANAGEMENT OR MANAGEMENT PLAN: The sustainable practice of creating 
or improving a healthy biodiversity, carbon sequestration, and air quality 
equal to the original natural environment prior to the Project.  
 
PROJECT: Any planned unit development, condominium, site condominium, 
plat, private road, site plan, or other application subject to review by the 
Planning Commission.  
 
REFORESTATION: The intentional restocking of trees that have been removed. 
 
TREE: A woody perennial plant with six (6) inches or greater of Diameter 
Breast Height, typically containing a single stem or trunk, and bearing lateral 
branches. 
 



STANDS OF TREES (TREE STANDS):  An aggregation of Trees or other growth 
occupying a specific area and sufficiently uniform in species composition, size, 
age, arrangement, and condition as to be distinguished from the forest or 
other growth on adjoining areas. 

 
C. Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Projects. Any Project with commercial 

use, industrial use, or a residential Project of two (2) or more residential 
building sites or units, shall be subject to the following: 

 
1. Buffers. The designation of a Buffer along all Lot lines for a residential 

Project boundary, including the Street right-of-way, and along all side and 
rear Lot lines for commercial or industrial Project. The Planning 
Commission has the discretion to increase, decrease, or eliminate the 
Buffer in whole or in part, based upon a consideration of the following 
factors: 
a. Whether Trees within or near the proposed Buffer are mature Trees; 
b. Whether the Buffer contains or could contain Tree Stands; 
c. The area of the proposed Buffer related to the area of the overall 

Project property; 
d. The location and type of existing adjacent uses; 
e. The type of permitted adjacent uses; 
f. The density permitted by the underlying zoning district; and 
g. The density permitted within a Planned Unit Development when a 

Project is sought pursuant to Article 12 of this ordinance. 
 

Any Tree within a Buffer, where sufficient evidence can be provided that it 
is deceased or is dying, may be removed when authorized by the Planning 
Commission as part of Project approval. 

2. Clear Cutting and Reforestation Plan. Clear Cutting is prohibited. Further, 
the cutting of any Tree prior to site plan approval is prohibited, unless it 
can be reasonably demonstrated to the Planning Commission that the 
Trees to be Clear Cut cannot be kept in a healthy state or safely 
maintained related to life or property within the Project site design. A 
reforestation plan of no less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the Trees 
removed at six (6) inches or greater in diameter measured at the Diameter 
Breast Height, which removal was necessary to construct the related 
Project infrastructure, including, but not necessarily limited to, any 
easements and physical improvements of internal roads, drives, public 
utilities, and storm water shall be provided. The reforestation plan shall be 
performed by a Forester, Landscape Architect, or other professional 
qualified to conduct a reforestation plan, and shall include a Management 
Plan for the entire Project property.  

3. Tree Canopies. All Trees within the Project shall maintain a Canopy. A 
Canopy shall include all of the tree leaves, branches, and stems for any 



tree without a building beneath the tree and the Canopy shall not be 
removed to a height more than eight (8) feet from ground level, when 
possible. A Canopy shall include all of the tree leaves, branches, and stems 
for any tree with a building beneath the tree in whole or in part and the 
Canopy shall not be removed to a height more than five (5) feet above the 
highest point of the building, when possible. Every Project property shall 
establish no less than twenty-five percent (25%) Tree Canopy coverage at 
maturity. 

4. Tree Stands. Tree Stands shall be preserved to the extent practicable 
within any Project.  

5. Health Analysis. The Planning Commission may require an inventory and 
general health analysis of all existing Trees of six (6) inches or greater in 
diameter measured at the Diameter Breast Height, performed by an 
Arborist. Any Tree, where sufficient evidence can be provided that it is 
deceased or is dying, may be removed without conducting a health 
analysis when authorized by the Planning Commission as part of Project 
approval.  

6. Outside Agency Approvals. Final approval from the Ottawa County Road 
Commission, Ottawa County Environmental Health Department, Ottawa 
County Water Resources Commissioner, and any other pertinent 
government agency with jurisdiction over applicable approvals for the 
Project shall be obtained. 

 
D. Appeals. In-lieu of Section 28.04 of this Ordinance, the Zoning Board of 

Appeals may grant relief from any provision of this Section and shall consider 
the following standards: 
 
1. That strict compliance with this Section would render conformity with 

those restrictions unnecessarily burdensome 
2. That the plight of the property owner/applicant is due to the unique 

circumstances of the property and not due to general conditions of the 
zoning district 

3. In the case of a Project, whether appropriate Buffers can be adequately 
provided if the variance is granted 

4. The location of buildings on adjoining properties 
5. The size of the lot in question and the size of adjoining properties 
6. The effect of construction on the lot in question on the view from 

adjoining properties 
7. The potential effect of erosion  

 
Section 2.  Waste Disposal Facilities. Section 24.06H of the Allendale Charter Township 

Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 



A site plan shall identify the location of solid waste disposal facilities and provide 
details for each solid waste disposal facility showing compliance with the 
following requirements. 
 
1. Dumpsters, Containers. All solid waste including recycling materials shall be 

placed in a dumpster or other appropriate container for pickup. Every 
dumpster or container shall be equipped with a lid or other top covering 
unless the enclosure adequately screens the contents above the dumpster 
opening. 

2. Enclosures. All dumpsters and other appropriate containers shall be placed in 
an enclosure constructed as follows: 

a. An enclosure shall be constructed with durable materials that 
compliment and match the  materials used in the principal structure. 
Chain link with slats are prohibited. 

b. An enclosure shall provide a solid visual screen on all four (4) sides. An 
enclosure containing separate pedestrian access from the gate 
opening shall ensure the same solid visual screen when viewed from a 
public or private street.  

c. The front of the enclosure shall be gated and shall include proper 
hardware to secure the gate in a stationary position when open and 
closed. The bottom of the gate shall be installed at least six (6) inches 
above grade level. The gate shall be affixed to steel bump guard posts 
of no less than six (6) inches in diameter and which are completely 
filled with concrete. 

d. The interior back wall of the enclosure shall be protected with steel 
bump guard posts located at least one (1) foot from the interior of the 
side and back walls. The bump guard posts shall be spaced three (3) 
feet apart. All steel bump guard posts shall be no less than six (6) 
inches in diameter and completely filled with concrete. 

e. For any enclosure containing a dumpster or other appropriate 
container, the minimum interior width of the enclosure and its 
opening shall be ten (10) feet and shall be clear of obstructions, 
including the gate, its hinges, and steel bump guard posts. In addition, 
at least two (2) feet of clearance from the side walls of the enclosure 
shall be provided. Where enclosures contain more than one (1) 
dumpster or container, the minimum interior width shall equal the 
combined widths of the dumpster/container plus a minimum of two 
(2) feet clearance from each side. The minimum interior length for all 
enclosures containing a dumpster shall be at least two (2) feet greater 
than the length of the dumpster or dumpsters it contains.   

f. Any enclosure constructed prior to the adoption of this language shall 
only be replaced pursuant to this Section and may not be restored or 
repaired in accordance with Section 26.04. 



3. All enclosures shall be located in the rear yard or the side yard. When located 
within an approved outdoor storage area, any dumpster may be absent an 
enclosure only if the outdoor storage area achieves the same or greater visual 
screening on all four (4) sides of the dumpster and meets the provisions of 
Section 24.06H2d and Section 24.06H2e, as if an enclosure was present, and 
shall meet Section 24.06H4 through Section 24.06H6. 

4. Access Lane. The site plan shall provide an open space as an access lane to an 
enclosure containing a dumpster. Such access lane shall be paved and shall be 
parallel with and the same width as the outside width of the enclosure 
extending for a length of sixty (60) feet from the front of the enclosure. 

5. Turning Lane. The site plan shall also provide an open space connected to and 
more or less perpendicular to the access lane to provide an area in which 
waste hauling vehicles may maneuver to change direction in order that 
vehicles shall not back into or back out of the site from a road right-of-way. 
Such turning lane shall be paved and shall be a minimum of fourteen (14) feet 
in width and thirty five (35) feet in length. 

6. Parking Restrictions. No parking spaces shall be permitted in the access lane 
or the turning lane. 

 
Section 3.  Building Appearance. Section 24.06J of the Allendale Charter Township Zoning 

Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 
Section 24.06J. Building Appearance. 
 
In granting site plan review approval, the Zoning Administrator or Planning 
Commission shall require certain designs, textures, colors, or architectural 
treatments for buildings or structures, which in its judgment produce a 
harmonious, substantial, distinctive, and inviting appearance with beauty of 
materials and architectural design creating a strong, sturdy, adaptable and lasting 
environment. The following materials represent and advance the intent and 
objective of the above descriptions. 
 

1. Commercial and Mixed Use Buildings: That portion of the building which 
faces a public or private street, parking lot, or residential zoning district 
shall be finished with brick, architectural masonry block, stone, glass or a 
combination of these materials. A minimum of ten percent (10%) of the 
building which faces a public or private street or customer parking lot shall 
contain glass windows or a similar glass product, such as spandrel glass, or 
completely or partially opaque glass.   
 

2. Residential: Brick, architectural masonry block, cement board and stone. 
These materials shall be used for a minimum of fifty (50%) percent of all 
exterior wall areas in combination with dryvit, stucco, vinyl, EFIS, metal 
with enclosed fasteners, and similar materials. 



 
3. Industrial: A minimum of 50 percent of that portion of the building which 

faces a public or private street or a residential zoning district shall be 
finished with brick, architectural masonry block, cement board, glass, 
stone or combination of those materials. 
 
The remaining exterior walls if not finished with the materials noted in the 
preceding paragraph shall be finished with stucco, EFIS, architectural 
metal panels consisting of a minimum of 24-gauge metal with a minimum 
rib height of 1¼ inches or a combination of these materials or similar 
materials. Exposed fasteners shall match the color of the metal finish.  
 

4. In recognition of developing technologies in building materials, the 
Planning Commission may agree to approve other materials provided that 
they meet the intent of this Section, are compatible with surrounding 
properties, and further provided that such materials shall comply with the 
architectural, safety and other requirements of the Township building 
codes, fire code and other applicable Township Ordinances. 

 
Section 4.  Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance 

are hereby expressly repealed.   
 

Section 5.  Severable Provisions. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent 

provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.   

 
Section 6.  Effective Date. This amendment to the Allendale Charter Township Zoning 

Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township Board of Allendale Charter Township, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on ______________, 20___, after a public hearing as required 
pursuant to Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended; after introduction and a first reading on 
______________, 20___, and after posting and publication following such first reading as 
required by Michigan Act 359 of 1947, as amended.  This Ordinance shall be effective on 
______________________, 20___, which date is the eighth day after publication of a Notice of 
Adoption and Posting of the Zoning Text Amendment Ordinance in the __________________ as 
required by Section 401 of Act 110, as amended. However, this effective date shall be extended 
as necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 402 of Act 110, as amended. 
 
______________________________    ______________________________ 
Adam Elenbaas, Township Supervisor    Jody Hansen, Township Clerk 



Section 24.06H. Waste Disposal Facilities.  
 
A site plan shall identify the location of solid waste disposal facilities and provide details for each solid waste 
disposal facility showing compliance with the following requirements. 
 

1. Dumpsters, Containers. All solid waste including recycling materials shall be placed in a dumpster or 
other appropriate container for pickup. Every dumpster or container shall be equipped with a lid or 
other top covering unless the enclosure adequately screens the contents above the dumpster opening. 

2. Enclosures. All dumpsters and other appropriate containers shall be placed in an enclosure constructed 
as follows: 

a. An enclosure shall be constructed with durable materials that compliment and match the  
materials used in the principal structure. Chain link with slats are prohibited. 

b. An enclosure shall provide a solid visual screen on all four (4) sides. An enclosure containing 
separate pedestrian access from the gate opening shall ensure the same solid visual screen 
when viewed from a public or private street.  

c. The front of the enclosure shall be gated and shall include proper hardware to secure the gate 
in a stationary position when open and closed. The bottom of the gate shall be protected with 
installed at least six (6) inches above grade level. The gate shall be affixed to steel bump guard 
posts at the front entrance areaof no less than six (6) inches in diameter and which are 
completely filled with concrete. 

d. The interior back wall of the enclosure shall be protected with steel bump guard posts located 
at least one (1) foot and six (6) inches in from the interior of the side and back walls. The bump 
guard posts shall be spaced three (3) feet on center apart. All steel bump guard posts shall be 
no less than six (6) inches in diameter and completely filled with concrete. 

e. For anany enclosure containing a single dumpster or other appropriate container, the 
minimum interior width of the enclosure and its opening shall be ten (10) feet and the 
minimum interior length shall be thirteen (13) feet. Enclosures containing clear of obstructions, 
including the gate, its hinges, and steel bump guard posts. . In addition, at least two (2) feet of 
clearance from the side walls of the enclosure shall be provided. Where enclosures contain 
more than one (1) dumpster or container shall have a minimum interior length of thirteen (13) 
feet and a, the minimum interior width shall equal to the combined widths of the 
dumpster/container plus a minimum of two (2) feet clearance from each side wall of the 
enclosure.. The minimum interior length for all enclosures containing a dumpster shall be at 
least two (2) feet greater than the length of the dumpster or dumpsters it contains.   

f. Any enclosure constructed prior to the adoption of this language shall only be replaced 
pursuant to this Section and may not be restored or repaired in accordance with Section 26.04. 

3. All enclosures shall be located in the rear yard or the side yard. When located within an approved 
outdoor storage area, any dumpster may be absent an enclosure only if the outdoor storage area 
achieves the same or greater visual screening on all four (4) sides of the dumpster and meets the 
provisions of Section 24.06H2d and Section 24.06H2e, as if an enclosure was present, and shall meet 
Section 24.06H4 through Section 24.06H6. 

4. Access Lane. The site plan shall provide an open space as an access lane to an enclosure containing a 
dumpster. Such access lane shall be paved and shall be parallel with and the same width as the outside 
width of the enclosure extending for a length of sixty (60) feet from the front of the enclosure. 

5. Turning Lane. The site plan shall also provide an open space connected to and more or less 
perpendicular to the access lane to provide an area in which waste hauling vehicles may maneuver to 
change direction in order that vehicles shall not back into or back out of the site from a road right-of-
way. Such turning lane shall be paved and shall be a minimum of fourteen (14) feet in width and thirty 
five (35) feet in length. 

6. Parking Restrictions. No parking spaces shall be permitted in the access lane or the turning lane. 



Section 24.06J. Building Appearance. 
 
In granting site plan review approval, the Zoning Administrator or Planning Commission shall require certain 
designs, textures, colors, or architectural treatments for any buildingbuildings or structures, which in its 
judgment produce a harmonious, substantial, distinctive, and inviting appearance with beauty of materials and 
architectural design creating a strong, sturdy, adaptable and lasting environment. The following materials 
represent and advance the intent and objective of the above descriptions. 
 

1. Commercial and Mixed Use Buildings: That portion of the building which faces a public or private street, 
parking lot, or residential zoning district shall be finished with brick, architectural masonry block, stone, 
glass or a combination of these materials. No more than forty (40%)A minimum of ten percent of any 
wall(10%) of the building which faces a public or private street or customer parking lot shall becontain 
glass. windows or a similar glass product, such as spandrel glass, or completely or partially opaque glass.   
 

2. Residential: Brick, architectural masonry block, cement board and stone. These materials shall be used 
for a minimum of fifty (50%) percent of all exteriorsexterior wall areas in combination with dryvit, 
stucco, vinyl, EFIS, metal with enclosed fasteners, and similar materials. 
 

3. Industrial: A minimum of 50 percent of that portion of the building which faces a public or private street 
or a residential zoning district shall be finished with brick, architectural masonry block, cement board, 
glass, stone or combination of those materials. 
 
The remaining exterior walls if not finished with the materials noted in the preceding paragraph shall 
be finished with stucco, EFIS, architectural metal panels consisting of a minimum of 24-gauge metal 
with a minimum rib height of 1¼ inches or a combination of these materials or similar materials. Exposed 
fasteners shall match the color of the metal finish. Updated 10-3-2016 Ord. No. 2016-13 
 

4. In recognition of developing technologies in building materials, the Planning Commission may agree to 
approve other materials provided that they meet the intent of this Section, are compatible with 
surrounding properties, and further provided that such materials shall comply with the architectural, 
safety and other requirements of the Township building codes, fire code and other applicable Township 
Ordinances. 


	5-24-2021 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	MAY SESSION-2nd DAY


